
Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

1 

 

The mission of the Committee is to advise the Director of the Oregon Health Authority (OHA) on the administrative aspects of the 
Oregon Medical Marijuana program (OMMP), review current and proposed administrative rules of the program, and provide annual 

input on the fee structure of the program. 
 

Date: March 11, 2015  
Time: 10:00am-2:30pm 
Location:   Conference Room 1E, Portland State Office Building, 800 NE Oregon Street, Portland, OR 97232  
 

Attendees: 
ACMM Attendees:  Arthur Richards, Ben Mackaness, Cheryl Smith, Brian Michaels (via Phone), Gerry Lehrburger, 
Laird Funk (via phone), Todd Dalotto, Sandee Burbank, and Sarah Bennett 

 
OMMP/OHA Staff: Tawana Nichols, Aaron Cossel, and Tracy Candela, Megan Lockwood, Steve Wagner,  

               Gabriela Tanaka, and Maureen Russell 
  
 Absent ACMM Members:  Paul Schmidt, Seth Crawford 
 

Members of the Public as listed on the Sign in sheet:  Emily Rizzy, Lori Duckworth, Dan Dugan, Jake Boone, John 
Stuart, Rachel Jones, Brooke Smith, Nadine Jackson, Nyah Kiley, Noah Stokes, Matt Gompers, Chelsie Harmon, Kelly 
Paige, Aligra Rainy, Sam Krause, Peter E Kramyer 

 

Summary of Meeting Action Items: 
Action Item Responsible Party 
Revise and post December 10, 2014 meeting minutes on the OMMP website. Tracy Candela 

Tracy Candela will send Tawana a list of “Benefits of the OMMP” from the last ACMM 
meeting for disbursement. 

Tracy Candela 

Provide a copy of the Governor’s budget to the ACMM. Steve Wagner 

Provide break down of Public Health Programs funded by OMMP fees. Tracy Candela 

Tracy Candela will post the community outreach letter from the Community Partner 
Program. 

Tracy Candela 

Dr. Gerry Lehrburger will contact Senator Edwards and the Measure 91 Committee regarding 
his research proposal. 

Dr. Gerry Lehrburger 

Meet to improve the OMMP financial reporting to the ACMM Todd Dalotto, Ben 
Mackaness, Steve 
Wagner 

 
 

Summary of Meeting Motions: 
Proposed Motion Proposed by Outcome 
Motion to approve December 10, 2014 Meeting Minutes Sandee 

Burbank 
Passed unanimously 

Motion to request that the previous budget format be provided to the ACMM Ben Mackaness Passed unanimously 

Motion for Ben Mackaness and Todd Dalotto to meet with Steve Wagner to 
improve financial reporting  

Sandee 
Burbank 

Passed unanimously 

http://healthoregon.org/acmm


Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

2 

 

Motion to nominate Cheryl Smith for Committee Chair Sandee 
Burbank 

Passed unanimously 

Motion to nominate Ben Mackaness for committee Vice Chair Todd Dalotto Passed unanimously 

Motion to petition the OHA, Legislature, and the Governor’s office for an 
allocation of funds for research and education. 

Ben Mackaness Passed unanimously 

 

 
Part 1:  OMMP Administrative Reports with ACMM Discussion 

Time Agenda Topic Person Responsible 

10:00-10:10  Welcome and Introductions 

 December 10, 2014 Meeting Minute Approval ACMM Chair: Ben Mackaness 

Summary of Discussion 

 Meeting attendee introductions. 

 December 10, 2014 Meeting Minutes Approval. 

 December 10, 2014 Minutes approved with one minor revision. 

http://healthoregon.org/acmm


Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

3 

 

Action Items 
 Tracy Candela will revise and post the December 10, 2014 Meeting Minutes on the OMMP website. 

 Ms. Candela will send Tawana a list of “Benefits of the OMMP” from the last ACMM meeting for 
disbursement.  

Conclusion(s)  Motion passed unanimously to approve December 10, 2014 Meeting Minutes pending requested 
change.  

 

Time Agenda Topic Person (s) Responsible 

10:10-10:30 

  Uninterrupted Administrative Reports Continued: 
 Statistics 
 Program Update 
 Budget Review  

OHA Administration:                      
Aaron Cossel 

Summary of Discussion 

http://healthoregon.org/acmm


Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

4 

 

 

 Statistics provided by Aaron Cossel 
 
 Number of current OMMP Patients: 70,559 
 Number of current (unique) OMMP caregivers: 35,337 
 Number of current (unique) OMMP growers: 46,047 
 Number of registrations where patients list themselves as grower: 37,480* 
 Number of registrations where patients list someone else as a grower: 34,919* 
 Number of physicians with a current patient on the OMMP: 1,666 
 Number of out-of-state participants: 

o Patients: 1,662 
o Caregivers: 616 
o Growers: 548 

 
 Condition Count: ** 

 
o Severe Pain:                                65,387 
o Spasms:                                 18,456 
o Nausea:                                   9,525 
o Cancer:                                   3,775 
o PTSD                                               4,010 
o Seizures:                                   1,871 
o Cachexia:                                   1,147 
o Glaucoma:                                   1,075 
o HIV/AIDS:                                       754 
o Alzheimer’s Disease (agitation):     81   
 
 Severe Pain only:  38,528 
 PTSD only:                    945 

 
*Includes patients who have a current card and a renewal application pending. 

**Count will be higher than the patient count as each patient may check more than one condition. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  *The Proposed Rule amendment and the Statement of Need were included in the meeting packet. 

 

Time Agenda Topic Person (s) Responsible 

10:10-10:30 

 Uninterrupted Administrative Reports: 
 Statistics 
 Program Update 
 Budget Review 

OHA Administration:                  
Tawana Nichols and Steve Wagner 

 

http://healthoregon.org/acmm


Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

5 

 

Summary of Discussion  

 
Program Update provided by Tawana Nichols 

 Personnel 

o Tawana Nichols stated the OMMP currently has 24 permanent employees and is recruiting for three vacant 

positions. 

o Ms. Nichols stated that Tracy Candela has been promoted to another position and currently only has part 

time duties with the OMMP. Gabriela Tanaka is being trained to take over Ms. Candela’s duties for ACMM 

meetings until the Administrative Assistant position is filled. 

o Ms. Nichols stated the other two vacant positions are a Public Service Representative 3 and an Administrative 

Specialist 2.  

 External Communication Project updates 
o Fee Brochure 

 Ms. Nichols stated that the fee brochure has been completed and is now available.  
o OMMP Program Handbook 

 Ms. Nichols stated the Program handbook has been updated and is now available. 
o Application Handbook 

 Ms. Nichols reported the application handbook will be available in May.  
 The handbook will walk patients through the application process including information on what kind 

of proof patients need to provide in order to qualify for a reduced fee and how the application needs 
to be filled out.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Time Agenda Topic Person (s) Responsible 

10:10-10:30 

 Uninterrupted Administrative Reports: 
 Statistics 
 Program Update 
 Budget Review 

OHA Administration:                  
Tawana Nichols and Steve Wagner  

 

http://healthoregon.org/acmm


Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

6 

 

Summary of Discussion Continued 

 
OMMP Budget Review 

 Ms. Nichols included the Financial Status Report in the committee member meeting folders.  
 Mr. Todd Dalotto asked why the report format has changed.  He would like to see the graphs that were included 

in the old report format. Ms. Nichols replied that the previous format is what was provided by the Program 
Support Manager which included inaccurate information. Ms Nichols stated that the report provided today is 
what the Public Health Division Fiscal Officer has approved to share and provides a breakdown of the fiscal 
information. Ms. Nichols further stated that if the committee would still like the graphs that were included in the 
old report she can request the release of that information from the Fiscal Officer.  

 Mr. Mackaness proposed a motion for OMMP to provide the previous budget report to the committee. The 
motion passed unanimously. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  Conclusion(s) Motion passed unanimously to request the OMMP to provide the previous budget report to the 
ACMM. 

 

 

Time Agenda Topic Person Responsible 

10:18- 11:15 
Dialogue between ACMM and Administration 

ACMM Members and OHA 
Administration 

Summary of Dialogue: 

http://healthoregon.org/acmm


Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

7 

 

  
 Ben Mackaness asked Tawana Nichols for a review of the new budget report format. Mr. Mackaness would like to 

know where the operational budgets are for the program. Ms. Nichols stated that the section labeled 
“expenditures” is the operational expenses. 

 Mr. Mackaness asked what the “Budgeted OIS Direct Charges” are. Ms Nichols responded that OIS is Office of 
Information Systems which provides the services that maintain and fix computer equipment and database. 

 Ms. Nichols stated that the “Budgeted Other Public Health Programs” are the seven Public Health programs that 
the OMMP supports with funding. 

 Todd Dalotto stated that the ACMM needs a more accurate report so that they can properly advise the OMMP. He 
further stated that the previous report was closer to what the ACMM is looking for and he is frustrated that there 
seems to be a lack of recollection as to what previous agreements have already been made.  

 The Center for Health Protection Administrator, Steve Wagner, asked what kind of detail the ACMM is looking for 
in a budget report and if they expected to advise on hiring of positions, on travel expenses. 

 Mr. Mackaness responded in the negative. His understanding is that the ACMM is to advise on financial aspects of 
the OMMP, which he argues they cannot do without more detailed information. Mr. Mackaness stated he is not 
looking to micromanage the budget, but to have financial information to advocate for prudent changes.  

 Sarah Bennett asked how much is being allocated to the seven Public Health programs that the OMMP supports. 
 Mr. Wagner stated that allocations to other programs are defined by the Governor’s budget, not by the OMMP or 

the ACMM. He further stated that the Legislature determined the current OMMP fee to meet the allocation needs 
put forth by the Governor’s budget. Mr. Wagner asked what kind of questions the ACMM wants answered so the 
OMMP can provide the appropriate data. 

 Mr. Mackaness stated that the question he would like answered is in regards to the program fee structure. Mr. 
Mackaness stated that the committee needs to know what the program fees are funding so that they can take that 
information to legislature and ask if those programs should be funded by sick patients.  

 Mr. Wagner stated that the financial report presented today provided the details of where program fees are being 
spent. 

 Mr. Mackaness stated the financial report does not indicate what the “Other Public Health Programs” are.  
 Mr. Wagner stated that some of the programs are drinking water, Emergency Medical Services, Contraceptive-

Care, Women Infants and Children. He stated that the information is public record and we can provide those 
figures to the ACMM. 

 Mr. Mackaness stated that the goal is to reduce costs for the sick and dying. 

 

Time Agenda Topic Person Responsible 

10:18-11:15 
Dialogue between ACMM and Administration 

ACMM Members and OHA 
Administration 

http://healthoregon.org/acmm


Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

8 

 

Summary of Dialogue Continued: 

 Ben Mackaness stated that after Measure 91 takes effect, the 18-21 year old patients will still need the OMMP and 
he is concerned about the consequences they may face if they can’t afford to participate in the OMMP.   

 Steve Wagner stated that he is happy to learn what information the ACMM is looking for then work with the 
program support manager and fiscal officer to see what information can be provided. Mr. Wagner stated that the 
operational budget must be left to the Program Manager.  

 Mr. Mackaness stated that he was under the impression that the ACMM should be advising on the operational 
budget. 

 Mr. Wagner stated that advising on the operational budget is not within the scope of the ACMM; however, the 
OMMP is happy to provide broad numbers of the funds allocated to Public Health programs.   

 Mr. Mackaness stated that he does not understand what the harm is in providing the budget as the ACMM 
requests. 

 Mr. Wagner stated that preparing the budget as requested by the ACMM creates additional work. 
 Todd Dalotto stated that the OMMP is only addressing a couple of examples that they brought up. Mr. Dalotto 

stated that he understands that the information they are requesting is part of the public record and available under 
with a freedom of information request but he believes this is an undue burden to place on a voluntary advisory 
committee. He states that the program has a statutory responsibility to provide the information needed to advise 
on the administrative parts of the OMMP.  

 Mr. Dalotto was under the impression that the financial report previously provided was set up as “plug and play” 
and did not require significant effort to provide. 

 Gerry Lehrburger requests that Mr. Mackaness, Ms. Nichols, and Mr. Wagner meet outside of the ACMM meeting 
to discuss what budgetary information the ACMM is requesting.  

 Sarah Bennett stated that she would like to be successful in advising the OMMP. She stated that the OMMP should 
have communicated with the ACMM, previous to this meeting, that the format of one of the tools they use was 
going to change. 

 Ms. Nichols stated that the new financial report was emailed to the ACMM prior to the meeting with the 
explanation that the information provided is what the fiscal officer authorized for release.  

 Mr. Wagner stated that he is open to a discussion on the data provided. He stated that it would require that the 
program pull in a fiscal officer to that meeting and currently the state is light on available financial staff as they are 
working on the current legislative session. Mr. Wagner would like to provide the appropriate data that the ACMM 
needs to make the decisions that are within their scope.  

 Ms. Burbank makes a motion that Mr. Mackaness and Mr. Dalotto meet with Ms. Nichols and Mr. Wagner to settle 
this discussion. The motion passes unanimously.   

 Dr. Lehrburger asked if all the funds generated by OMMP fees is spoken for by the Legislature. Mr. Wagner replied 
in the affirmative. 

 

 

http://healthoregon.org/acmm


Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

9 

 

 

Time Agenda Topic Person Responsible 

10:18-11:15 
Dialogue between ACMM and Administration 

ACMM Members and OHA 
Administration 

Summary of Dialogue Continued: 

 Gerry Lehrburger asked how this committee, or individuals, can make changes to how funds are allocated. 
 Steve Wagner stated that the ACMM and individuals can contact elected officials directly. Mr. Wagner stated that 

information on how OMMP funds other Public Health programs may assist them in that communication. Mr. 
Wagner further stated that as a Public Health member he knows the programs the OMMP helps fund are vital 
programs. 

 Sandee Burbank stated that a program that is so important to the funding of Public Health programs should not 
be run short-staffed and that something should be done about keeping good people. 

 Tawana Nichols stated that the OMMP has been fully staffed for the past few years. 
 Todd Dalotto stated the committee was just told that the OMMP did not have enough staff to put together a 

financial report. 
 Mr. Wagner stated that the Public Health Division currently has 103 vacant positions and is working to correct 

the situation.   
 Cheryl Smith asked if the OMMP has input on the Governor’s budget.  
 Mr. Wagner stated that the Governor’s budget is the executive budget. OMMP fund allocations are determined 

by that budget. 
 Ms. Smith asked if there was room for input from state agencies. 
 Mr. Wagner responded that recommendations to the Governors’ budget are made at the program level.  
 Mr. Mackaness asked why the ACMM doesn’t have access to the Governor’s budget recommendations before 

they are made. Mr. Mackaness stated that if they are not privy to that information he does not understand why 
the ACMM exists.  Mr. Mackaness would like to know what conversations are being had regarding the future of 
the OMMP in relation to Measure 91.  

 Mr. Wagner stated that there are more than 40 bills on marijuana right now. There is a joint committee on the 
implementation of Measure 91 and many of the bills are going through that committee but there are also bills 
that are being heard outside of that committee. There is currently no way of saying how things will turn out.  

 Ms. Smith asked about the best way to impact OMMP fees.  She would like to know if the ACMM should contact 
the legislature directly. 

 Mr. Wagner stated that the Governor’s budget is decided by the Governor’s office. The OMMP will give 
recommendations to the Governor’s office but it is still the Governor’s budget. The Legislature has the authority 
to approve the budget. Once the budget is set, the OMMP management is then told what the program 
expenditures will be.   

 Ms. Burbank stated that when the fees were increased to $200 the ACMM was deliberately kept out of the loop 
by Barry Kast until after the vote had been taken by the Legislature. 

 Mr. Dalotto stated that the March meeting is very important because it occurs during the legislative session and 
he believes that the ACMM advises the OMMP on how they advise the Legislature. 

 Mr. Wagner disagreed and stated the OMMP cannot be a spokesperson for the ACMM nor can they be 
advocates.  

http://healthoregon.org/acmm


Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

10 

 

 

Time Agenda Topic Person Responsible 

10:18- 11:15 
Dialogue between ACMM and Administration 

ACMM Members and OHA 
Administration 

Summary of Dialogue Continued:  

 Ben Mackaness stated that the patients are the program; therefore, he believes that the OMMP should advocate 
on behalf of the patients.  

 Sarah Bennett asked if the ACMM can reach out to the Governor’s office directly. 
 Mr. Mackaness stated that yes; the ACMM can reach out to the Governor’s office directly. 
 Ms. Bennett stated that then the ACMM should do that.  
 Mr. Mackaness thanked Steve Wagner for attending the meeting.   
 Mr. Mackaness asked Mr. Wagner if he has any insights as to what the ACMM might be able to do that can 

actually make a difference to the program. Right now, Mr. Mackaness asserted, the ACMM has a difficult time 
understanding their usefulness.  

 Mr. Wagner stated that the biggest value the ACMM has for the OMMP is that they have a direct connection with 
the community.  The OMMP gets the greatest benefit from knowing if there are issues such as: 

 Patients being confused with the fee structure; 
 knowing if there are problems with how patients navigate the application; or 
 If there are access issues between and patients and physicians. 

 Mr. Wagner stated that it is difficult when the OMMP receives advice regarding issues that are outside the 
parameters of the program’s authority.  

 Mr. Mackaness asked what the ACMM should focus on when advising the OMMP. He stated he would like the 
ACMM and the OMMP to function as a team and make measurable differences for the community.  

 Sandee Burbank stated that one of the first things the ACMM accomplished as a group was take cardholder 
addresses off the cards.  

 Ms. Burbank stated that the work just completed on the website overhaul was very important to patients who 
are having a hard time understanding the application process. 

 Ms. Burbank would like to know why the drop box is in a dark little corner of the Portland State Office building 
and why patients aren’t being told that if they send their applications certified mail they can have legal 
protection during the application process. They should be made aware that using the drop box will not provide 
them proof of application submission. 

 Ms. Burbank stated that these are the issues in which the ACMM can have an impact. Ms. Burbank further 
remarked that she does not see all the ACMM members participating in efforts such as the review of the OMMP 
website. Ms. Burbank would like the ACMM to get back to the basics of what they can do to create meaningful 
impacts to the program. 

 Mr. Wagner stated that the OMMP can make sure to be very deliberate as to what is on future meeting agendas 
and ensure that communication regarding revisions is open. Mr. Wagner expects that the program will face big 
transitions in the near future so it is particularly important at this time that the ACMM and the OMMP stay on 
the same page.  

 

 
 

http://healthoregon.org/acmm


Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

11 

 

 

Time Agenda Topic Person Responsible 

10:18-11:15 Dialogue between ACMM and Administration 
ACMM Members and OHA 

Administration 

Summary of Dialogue Continued:  

 
 Steve Wagner stated that the OMMP can improve how information is framed regarding program changes that 

are communicated to the ACMM so as to promote effective teamwork.  
 Ben Mackaness stated that the ACMM would like clarification on what the scope of the ACMM is and how they 

may be effective. 
 Mr. Wagner stated that communication from the OMMP can be better at communicating back to the ACMM on 

how we have taken their advice and implemented it. For example there is a project underway to improve the 
quality of the program cards because the OMMP has heard that patients are having a hard time keeping the 
cards in good shape.  

 Sarah Bennett asked if there was a way for the OMMP to keep the ACMM informed of current projects. 
 Mr. Wagner agreed and stated that we can certainly keep the ACMM informed of upcoming projects such as 

what was done for the handbooks and fee pamphlets.  
 Mr. Wagner asked the ACMM to consider what the gaps in education will be in the upcoming months for 

cardholders.  
 Cheryl Smith stated that the upcoming gap in  education is with healthcare professionals. There are bills currently 

being discussed that healthcare professionals may be completely unaware of.  
 Mr. Wagner stated that it is likely that only one or two bills will be the end result of all the bills that are currently 

on the table. Right now it is not possible to tell what the outcomes will be. He has heard the following concerns 
be discussed at the committee hearings: 
 Maintaining the validity of medical marijuana; 
 the committee does not want to impair the program; 
 the committee does not want to run duplicate programs; and  
 the committee is concerned about the diversion and safety of products. 

 Mr. Wagner stated that the OMMP submitted testimony regarding HB 2636, which would place limits on the 
number of patients a physician can recommend medical marijuana to, stating that 78% of patients would be 
impacted. A majority of those patients already travel outside of their zip codes to see a physician.  The OHA will 
continue to provide these types of statistics to the Measure 91 committee hearings.  

 Brian Michaels asked what concerns were brought up about Colorado during the committee hearing and who 
had them.  

 Mr. Wagner stated that he will not speak for Oregonian legislators. He can share what he has heard as concerns 
from the Colorado Department of public health, as well as current lawsuits against Colorado regarding diversion 
to other states.  

 

 

http://healthoregon.org/acmm


Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

12 

 

Part 2: Committee Business 

Time Agenda Topic Person Responsible 

11:15-11:30 Officer Elections ACMM Members 

Summary of Discussion: 
 

 Todd Dalotto asked what the status is of the new ACMM appointments and if the applicants have been notified of 
the delay.  

 Tawana Nichols responded that the applicants have been notified by email of the appointment delay. 

 Sandee Burbank nominated Cheryl Smith for Committee Chair. No other candidates were put forth. Ms. Smith 
received unanimous approval for election as Committee Chair.  

 Mr. Dalotto nominated Ben Mackaness for Committee Vice Chair. No other candidates were put forth. Mr. 
Mackaness received unanimous approval for election as Committee Vice Chair.  

 

Conclusion(s) 
 Cheryl Smith was unanimously elected as the ACMM Committee Chair. 

 Ben Mackaness was unanimously elected as the ACMM Committee Vice Chair. 

 

http://healthoregon.org/acmm


Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

13 

 

 
Time 

Agenda Topic Person Responsible 

11:30-12:00 

Subcommittee and Other Reports: 
 Outreach Report- Cover Oregon Update 
 Horticulture Research & Safety Report 
 Dispensary Program Subcommittee Report 
 Legislation Subcommittee Report 
 Legislative Update 

 

Cheryl Smith and Kelly Paige 
Gerry Lehrburger                                 

Todd Dalotto  
 Todd Dalotto                               

Anthony Taylor 

Summary of Discussion: 

 
Outreach Subcommittee Report- Presented by Cheryl Smith 

 Cheryl Smith deferred to Kelly Paige for the report. 
 Ms. Smith introduced Ms Paige as an Outreach Coordinator for the Community Partner program.  Ms. Paige has been 

visiting clinics in order to help enroll patients in the Oregon Health Plan (OHP).  

 Ms. Paige stated that the Oregon Health Authority would like everyone who is eligible to be covered by OHP to be 
enrolled in OHP. She visited several dispensaries with an informational letter outlining OHP eligibility requirements, 
and stated that individuals who qualify for OHP may also be eligible for an OMMP reduced fee. She now has a new 
letter to inform the public that Open Enrollment period has ended for private insurance closed on February 15th but 
individuals who are eligible for OHP or Healthy Kids may sign up at any time of the year.   

 Ms. Smith asked if there were any plans to re-open the open enrollment period. 

 Ms Paige replied that there are special circumstances that may allow a patient to sign up for private insurance after 
the open enrollment period.  

 Ms Smith stated that OHP only looks at your income not your assets to qualify members. 

 Ms. Paige announced that MAMA’s is now part of the Community Partner program and will be partnering with the 
OHA to enroll patients in health care.  

 Tracy Candela will post the Community Outreach letter on the OMMP website. Ms. Paige requested that if anyone 
else is interested in becoming a community partner to please let her know. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Action Items  Tracy Candela will post the Community Outreach letter on the OMMP Website 

 

http://healthoregon.org/acmm


Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

14 

 

Time Agenda Topic Person Responsible 

11:30-12:00 

Subcommittee and Other Reports: 
 Outreach Report- Cover Oregon Update 
 Horticulture Research & Safety Report 
 Dispensary Program Subcommittee Report 
 Legislation Subcommittee Report 
 Legislative Update 

 

Cheryl Smith and Kelly Paige 
Gerry Lehrburger                                 

Todd Dalotto  
 Todd Dalotto                               

Anthony Taylor 

Summary of Discussion: 

 
Horticulture Research & Safety Subcommittee Report- Presented by Gerry Lehrburger 
 Gerry Lehrburger decided to change the topic of his presentation after hearing the financial information previously 

discussed. He stated he would instead discuss how the OMMP can hold onto some of the money it generates to 
complete research on medical marijuana. Dr. Lehrburger stated: 

 4.5 of the U.S. population are using 50% of the narcotics. 
 $78 billion is spent annually to repair damages of chronic narcotic usage.  
 Marijuana should be explored as an alternative. 

 Dr. Lehrburger requested the support of the ACMM and the OMMP to request research funds from the legislature. 

 Dr. Lehrburger stated that he would like the ACMM to have more influence on the OMMP budget. 

 In 2011 there were more narcotics consumed per capita in Oregon than in any other state. In 2013 Oregon was 
second under Oklahoma. 

 Dr. Lehrburger requested that the ACMM and the OMMP work together to earmark $2 million per year for research.  
He has submitted a letter with this request to the ACMM for review. 

 Dr. Lehrburger put forth a motion to have the OHA put aside funding from OMMP to retain $2 million per year for 
the next 5 years for horticultural research.  

 Arthur Richards asked if there would be a $10 million pool of money for researchers to draw from. 

 Dr. Lehrburger responded that he envisions a 501c3 organization that would manage those funds transparently. The 
organization would have a scientific advisory committee that would review proposals and distribute funds. The 
organizations would report research conclusions back to the ACMM and the OHA.  

 Cheryl Smith stated that this proposition should be made to the governor’s office, legislators, and the OHA. 

 Mr. Richards stated that he would like to see education for those dispensing medical marijuana be part of this 
proposal.  

 Dr. Lehrburger stated that the Health Research Institute (HRI) that is advocating this research has a strong education 
component already in place.  

 Todd Dalotto proposed an amendment to request the OHA petition the legislature and the Governor’s office to have 
a budget approved for Dr. Lehrburger’s proposal. He also added a second amendment to add language advising how 
this research would have a cost saving effect for the State of Oregon. 

 Mr. Mackaness stated that the Chair may authorize Dr. Lehrburger to speak with the Governor’s office and legislature 
directly. 

 Ms. Burbank would like to clarify if Dr. Lehrburger is requesting that the money be allocated to the Health Research 
Institute or if there should be a creation of another similar group.  

 Dr. Lehrburger stated that he leaves that decision up to the ACMM. 

http://healthoregon.org/acmm


Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

15 

 

Time Agenda Topic Person Responsible 

11:30-12:00 

Subcommittee and Other Reports: 
 Outreach Report- Cover Oregon Update 
 Horticulture Research & Safety Report 
 Dispensary Program Subcommittee Report 
 Legislation Subcommittee Report 
 Legislative Update 

 

Cheryl Smith and Kelly Paige 
Gerry Lehrburger                                 

Todd Dalotto  
 Todd Dalotto                               

Anthony Taylor 

Summary of Discussion Continued: 

 
Horticulture Research & Safety Subcommittee Report Continued- Presented by Gerry Lehrburger 
 Sandee Burbank would like medical marijuana education to be directed towards patients not just to the distributers. 

 Arthur Richards stated that SB480 would establish a semi-independent state agency clinical research cannabis board. 
It directs boards to promote use of cannabis as treatment for medical conditions, compiles information on the 
medical use of cannabis and identifies support organizations that engage in clinical research.  Mr. Richards would like 
to see Dr. Lehrburger’s proposal be attached to a bill like this.  

 Ben Mackaness stated that it would be valuable to speak with the Senator Chris Edwards, the sponsor of SB480, 
regarding his bill and Mr. Leherburger’s proposal. He advised that the ACMM, HRI must call the Governor’s office and 
go to Salem personally to connect with legislatures.  

 Dr. Lehrburger stated that timing for this bill is good.  

 Mr. Mackaness moves to pass the motion of the amended bill. Motion passed unanimously. 

 Dr. Lehrburger stated that he will contact Senator Edwards and the Measure 91 Committee. 

Action Items 
 Dr. Lehrburger will contact Senator Edwards and the Measure 91 Committee regarding his 

research proposal. 

Conclusion(s)  Motion to petition the OHA, Legislature, and the Governor’s office for an allocation of funds for 
research and education passed unanimously. 

http://healthoregon.org/acmm


Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

16 

 

Time Agenda Topic Person Responsible 

11:30-12:00 

Subcommittee and Other Reports: 
 Outreach Report- Cover Oregon Update 
 Horticulture Research & Safety Report 
 Dispensary Program Subcommittee Report 
 Legislation Subcommittee Report 
 Legislative Update 

 

 
Cheryl Smith and Kelly Paige 

Gerry Lehrburger                                 
Todd Dalotto  

 Todd Dalotto                               

Anthony Taylor 
Summary of Discussion  

 
Dispensary Program Subcommittee Report- Presented by Todd Dalotto 

 Mr. Dalotto stated that there is no dispensary report this quarter as there is no new activity with the dispensary 
program. 

 
Legislative Subcommittee Report- Presented by Todd Dalotto 
 Mr. Dalotto stated that this is probably the busiest legislative period for marijuana ever with proposals from 

every end of the spectrum. 

 Mr. Dalotto will report on the measure 91 committee and the agriculture bills, Ms. Smith will discuss healthcare 
bills, Mr. Anthony Taylor will report on what is happening on the ground in Salem. 

 Mr. Dalotto stated that as of today there are 21 bills regarding marijuana. This number changes frequently. He 
further stated that most bills will have public hearings with invited testimony but not all of the hearings are 
public.  

 Mr. Dalotto stated that there was a bill regarding the OMMP system. He stated that the ACMM was not invited 
to testify and that the OHA was not invited to testify. 

 Ms. Nichols advised that Mr. Wagner was present for the OHA but did not testify. 

 Mr. Funk stated that he was invited to testify but not as an ACMM member. He provided a written testimony to 
the measure 91 committee. 

 Mr. Dalotto stated that he is concerned about the future of the OMMP. He encourages the ACMM and the OHA 
to inform the legislature of the value that the OMMP holds for its citizenry.  

 Mr. Dalotto encouraged ACMM members to sign up for the E-updates available on the States website so that 
they too can keep current with what is occurring with the Measure 91 Committee.  

 

 

 

http://healthoregon.org/acmm


Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

17 

 

Time Agenda Topic Person Responsible 

11:30-12:00 

Subcommittee and Other Reports: 
 Outreach Report- Cover Oregon Update 
 Horticulture Research & Safety Report 
 Dispensary Program Subcommittee Report 
 Legislation Subcommittee Report 
 Legislative Update 

 

 
Cheryl Smith and Kelly Paige 

Gerry Lehrburger                                 
Todd Dalotto  

 Todd Dalotto                               

Anthony Taylor 

Summary of Discussion Continued 

 
Legislative Subcommittee Report Continued- Presented by Todd Dalotto 

 Todd Dalotto summarized the following bills: 
  SB 881 fixes a flaw in the 2009 hemp bill that originally did not allow production of hemp seen except for 

what was needed for the next year’s crop. 
 Representative Buckley’s bill repeals the requirement for hemp growers to be licensed by the department of 

agriculture.  
 There are bills that are expected to be introduced to amend the industrial hemp act to establish control areas 

to prevent pollen cross contamination between hemp and marijuana crops. 
 Other bills cover how MMJ dispensaries and recreational dispensaries may be co-located 

 Mr. Dalotto stated that The Measure 91 Committee will merge all the bills into 1 or 2 omnibus bills.  

 Mr. Dalotto further stated that the Committee is also looking to adopt the OMMP definition of immature plants.   

 Mr. Dalotto announced that tonight the OLCC will be providing testimony to the measure 91 committee and will be 
delivering their recommendations to measure 91.  

 Mr. Dalotto also stated that there is a federal bill presented by Senator Rand Paul that will federally reschedule 
Marijuana as a schedule II drug. It will allow limited interstate commerce for low THC and high CBD medicines, ease 
banking restrictions, reform National Institute on Drug Abuse(NIDA) to broaden access to medical research, and 
allow the VA and state medical agencies to recommend cannabis for certain medical conditions. He continued that 
this bill may have some traction so it is important to contact you federal representatives.  

 

 

Time: 
Lunch Break 

12:00-1:00 

http://healthoregon.org/acmm


Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

18 

 

Time Agenda Topic Person Responsible 

1:00-2:00 

Subcommittee and Other Reports: 
 Outreach Report- Cover Oregon Update 
 Horticulture Research & Safety Report 
 Dispensary Program Subcommittee Report 
 Legislation Subcommittee Report 
 Legislative Update 

 

 
Cheryl Smith and Kelly Paige 

Gerry Lehrburger                                 
Todd Dalotto  

 Todd Dalotto                               

Anthony Taylor 

Summary of Discussion:  

 
Legislative Update- Presented by Anthony Taylor 

 Anthony Taylor introduced himself as the co-founder and Legislative Liaison for Compassionate Oregon. He has 
been on the ground in Salem monitoring the Marijuana Bills. 

 Mr. Taylor stated that so far 42 bills have been introduced and he expects more in the coming weeks. He reported 
that so far the Measure 91 Committee has only had courtesy hearings on 3 bills though the content of those bills 
may resurface with future bill discussions. 

 Mr. Taylor stated that the first bills heard were about where about the OMMP falling under the OLCC. This 
brought him great concern for the program.  

 Mr. Taylor stated that another bill would create a tracking system for medical marijuana to increase the comfort of 
OLCC so that recreational stores and medical dispensaries may be co-located. This bill, in an attempt to limit 
product leakage into the black market, would state that if a grower has more than 12 but less than 48 plants he 
will need to track, record, and report to the OHA on a monthly basis information such as: 

 Number of  flowers produced; 
 Number of leaves produced; and 
 Quantity of edibles and/or concentrates. 

 Mr. Taylor stated that Bill 2630 would create a mechanism to allow the OHA to inspect physician records. This bill 
is intended to create better oversight of medical marijuana recommending physicians. This is preferred over the 
bill that would limit the number of patients physicians can recommend. 

 Mr. Taylor stated that currently 23 physicians in the state write 78% of all medical marijuana recommendations. 
They all have over 450 patients. If a limit of 450 patients is placed on recommending physicians the state would 
need to add 100 physicians to cover the needs of existing patients. And since most mainstream physicians will 
not/are not allowed to recommend participation in the program to patients this would result in patients note 
being treated.  

 Mr. Taylor stated that it is important to note that the VA will not disqualify a patient because of their OMMP 
cardholder status.  

 Mr. Taylor reported that he is working with Representative Lively to push for the clinic oversight bill instead of the 
450 limitation bill.  

 Mr. Taylor stated that HB 2821 is a patient’s rights bill. He hopes that it can be named the Jim Klahr memorial bill. 
The bill would prohibit physicians from refusing, or being required by another to refuse, prescribing a patient 
medication or being removed from a transplant list on the basis of the patient’s medical marijuana usage.  

http://healthoregon.org/acmm


Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

19 

 

 

Time Agenda Topic Person Responsible 

1:00-2:00 

 Subcommittee and Other Reports: 
 Outreach Report- Cover Oregon Update 
 Horticulture Research & Safety Report 
 Dispensary Program Subcommittee Report 
 Legislation Subcommittee Report 
 Legislative Update 

 

 
Cheryl Smith and Kelly Paige 

Gerry Lehrburger                                 
Todd Dalotto  

 Todd Dalotto                               

Anthony Taylor 

Summary of Discussion continued:  

Legislative Update Continued- Presented by Anthony Taylor 

 Anthony Taylor stated that he does not believe Bill 2781, that would codify the current rule that prohibits medical 
marijuana cardholders from being daycare provider, will get very far. Mr. Taylor continued that after June 1st 
anyone will be able to use marijuana recreationally and continue as a child care provider but someone who has 
registered to use it medically would be banned from being a child care provider. This bill could have implications 
within the Department of Education as well.  

 Mr. Taylor reported that there is a bill that would allow continued usage of medical marijuana by a registered 
patient during DUII diversion programs. Mr. Taylor stated that it is important to make distinctions between 
recreational and medical use of marijuana.   

 Mr. Taylor stated that currently there is no clear indication if the OMMP will remain under the OHA jurisdiction or 
if it will merge with the OLCC. He expects more definition on this issue by the end of the month.  

 Mr. Taylor stated that there is a need in small towns to allow co-locating medical dispensaries and recreational 
stores. There is a real-estate/zoning availability challenge in those small towns that may prohibit two separate 
store fronts from opening. 

 Todd Dalotto asked if there is any insight regarding the bill that eliminates advisory committees.  

 Aaron Cossel stated that this bill has not yet been analyzed. He further stated that it may just be a house cleaning 
bill where legislature wants programs to revaluate and reaffirm current advisory committees. 

 Mr. Taylor  stated that Senator Edwards has two bills in the pipeline: 
 Bill 479 would create a taskforce on clinical research of cannabis. It would direct the taskforce to study 

and report on the development of the medical cannabis industry to facilitate providing patients with 
medical products that meet their needs. The report would be due September 15, 2016. 

 Bill 480 establishes a semi-independent state agency clinical research of cannabis board similar to the 
current Wine Board. The board would be composed of industry members and would advise legislature on 
industry needs. 

 Mr. Taylor stated that the OLCC wants control of all the research groups. He stated that the ACMM should support 
bill 480 as that would make research groups independent of the OLCC or OHA. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://healthoregon.org/acmm


Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

20 

 

Time Agenda Topic Person Responsible 

1:00-2:00 

Subcommittee and Other Reports: 
 Outreach Report- Cover Oregon Update 
 Horticulture Research & Safety Report 
 Dispensary Program Subcommittee Report 
 Legislation Subcommittee Report 
 Legislative Update 

 
 

 
Cheryl Smith and Kelly Paige 

Gerry Lehrburger                                 
Todd Dalotto  

 Todd Dalotto                               

Anthony Taylor 

Summary of Discussion continues 

 

Legislative Update Continued- Presented by Anthony Taylor 

 Anthony Taylor stated that the previously mentioned bill 2821 would also create an emergency no cost card for 
hospice patients, and a one fee lifetime card for patients with lifetime conditions. The bill would also add ALS, 
autism, and sleep disorders as qualifying conditions.  In addition it would also protect the medical community 
who may administer medical marijuana outside of medical facility (e.g. home care).  The intent of the bill is to 
reestablish the relationship between patient and physician. 

 Laird Funk asked if language is still in Bill 2821 that allows for response to emergency hospice cards requests to be 
conducted electronically. 

 Mr. Taylor stated yes, that language is still in the bill. 

 Mr. Funk stated that his physician indicated that a pain contract that denies opioids to patients using medical 
marijuana is mandated by the state of Oregon. Mr. Funk asserted his support of bill 2821 stemmed from this 
experience. He believes that forcing patients to choose between opioids, which do not treat all of their 
symptoms, and medical marijuana leads to an increase of opioid overdoses. 

 Mr. Taylor stated that Kaiser of Hawaii does not have a problem with medical marijuana but Kaiser in Oregon 
keeps medical marijuana at arms length. He is not sure why this discrepancy occurs. 

 Mr. Taylor advised the ACMM to contact their legislatures and would like the OHA to also advocate for the 
OMMP’s existence as is. 

 Sandee Burbank thanked Mr. Taylor for being in Salem to keep on top of the legislative bills.  

 Ben Mackaness requested everyone who has contact with patients to please ask patients to contact the 
legislature in support of the program. He stated that advocates must be unstoppable in their support of the 
OMMP. 

 Mr. Mackaness advised individuals writing letters to legislature gather multiple signatures. Mr. Mackaness stated 
that there is a significant amount of interest in the Medical Marijuana program being controlled by the OLCC, 
specifically in regards to cultivation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://healthoregon.org/acmm


Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

21 

 

Time Agenda Topic Person Responsible 

1:00-2:00 Legislative Proposal Review and Follow Up ACMM Members 

Summary of Discussion:  

 Ben Mackaness asked if, per the last meeting’s action items, a letter was drafted or sent out per a passed motion. 

 Tracy Candela stated that the OMMP was to provide a copy of the list of legislative items that was written on the 
board to Cheryl Smith and she would refine the language.  

 Ms. Smith is following up on the letter. 

 Sarah Bennett asked what the relationship is between the ACMM and the Oregon Medical Association (OMA). 

 Mr. Mackaness responded that currently there is no relationship between the ACMM and the OMA.  

 Sandee Burbank stated that the relationship between the OMA and ACMM has in the past been dependent on 
who is in charge of the OMA. They have in the past been friendly but not involved. 

 Anthony Taylor stated that the OMA malpractice program is written through CNA. He further stated that CNA 
does not like to insure physicians who are making recommendations for medical marijuana usage.  

 Todd Dalotto asked if CNA insures the physicians or just the OMA. 

 Mr. Taylor stated that CNA is an OMA endorsed insurer and a good portion of the physicians in the state are 
insured by them.  

 Ms. Smith stated that health care providers, starting with hospice or homecare, must be educated on medical 
marijuana. Education should be targeted to direct care staff.  

 Mr. Mackaness asked what can the direct things can the ACMM do between now and the end of June to ensure 
the existence of the OMMP as it exists today. 

 Ms. Bennett stated that we should not just work from the bottom up but also attempt to work from the top down 
by trying to schedule meetings between the ACMM and the OMA to see what education they may need. 

 Ms. Smith stated that contacting the OMA is a futile exercise as Compassionate Oregon has tried several times to 
be in contact with them without success. 

 Mr. Mackaness stated that the lack of contact is likely due to a perceived financial fear or fear of license 
revocation on the part of physicians and the OMA. This proposition may be better suited as a long term goal for 
the ACMM.  

 Ms. Burbank stated that many physicians will refer patients to the MAMA’s clinics for education or for physician 
recommendations. They have in the past offered education trainings for physicians and they do not show up. 

 Ms. Smith stated that physicians know they can refer patients to reputable clinics that are experts and therefore 
they don’t feel they need to gain any of the knowledge regarding medical marijuana. 

 
 

http://healthoregon.org/acmm


Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

22 

 

 

Time Agenda Topic Person Responsible 

1:00-2:00 Legislative Proposal Review and Follow Up ACMM Members 

Summary of Discussion Continued: 

 Gerry Lehrburger stated that education is a big part of what they must do. They need to inform physicians that 
the side effects for some of the prescribed medicines are worse than the benefits. Deaths from overdoses have 
surpassed the deaths cause by motor vehicles in Oregon. Physicians should know that marijuana is not contra-
indicated and can have complementary effects. Vicodin and Tylenol do not have beneficial synergistic effects with 
narcotics. Marijuana can work synergistically to reduce the requirement for narcotics. 

 Ben Mackaness asked that Dr. Lehrburger create a bulleted fact sheet with this information to distribute to 
physicians and patients. 

 Anthony Taylor stated that the issue is that medical marijuana is defined as a schedule I drug. This definition 
creates an implicit threat to the licenses of physicians who recommend medical marijuana. 

 Dr. Lehrburger stated that what matters is that physicians are willing to prescribe regular medications to patients 
who use medical marijuana as the state already has a good set up of clinics that are willing to recommend 
medical marijuana. 

 Todd Dalotto stated that basic parameters should be created to work around whatever the legislature decides so 
that OMMP patients can continue to access medicine undisturbed.  

 Mr. Dalotto stated that the preservations of no taxation on medical marijuana is particularly important if zoning is 
created that would allow for recreational stores to establish but not allow for medical dispensaries. 

 Mr. Mackaness stated that they should document the unintended consequences for the bills that are currently 
being discussed and the implications that they may have for medical marijuana patients.  

 Mr. Mackaness would like for the ACMM to decide what legislative dates or events are most important for there 
to be a show of force by the ACMM in Salem. 

 Mr. Mackaness would like a list of what are the most important things the legislature should know. 

 

http://healthoregon.org/acmm


Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

23 

 

 

Time Agenda Topic Person Responsible 

1:00-2:00 Legislative Proposal Review and Follow Up ACMM Members 

Summary of Discussion Continued: 

 Sandee Burbank stated that Kaiser was the first facility she heard to start using pain contracts. Patients were 
being warned at intake that they could lose their insurance for having OMMP cards.  

 Anthony Taylor stated that Kaiser and Oregon Health & Science University (OHSU) have their own insurance 
programs. CNA applies to independent doctors.  

 Ben Mackaness stated that the issue is stemming from fear of losing DEA prescribing licenses.  

 Todd Dalotto requested that the language of the list being written include not just the OLCC but programs or 
committees formed during this process. 

 Sarah Bennett stated that the legislature must be educated that a child care provider will be able to recreationally 
use marijuana but if they are a registered OMMP patient they will not be able to retain their jobs.  

 Ms. Bennett requested that the list include how many patients under the age of 21 are on the program. 

 Mr. Dalotto stated that the ACMM should get in contact with the Governor Brown’s office and learn what her 
stance is on the matter.  

 Laird Funk stated that in order to facilitate a meeting with the Governor, the ACMM must contact Governor 
Brown’s scheduler. 

 Brian Michaels stated that Governor Brown being a newly appointed official is likely to avoid anything 
controversial. He stated that the ACMM should contact the Attorney General Ellen Rosenblum and ask her why 
her office is going after child care providers. If she can be educated regarding the looming double standard that 
medical marijuana patients will face once recreational marijuana is legal the ACMM may be able to get her on 
board. 

 Mr. Mackaness stated that all agencies are required to communicate with the ACMM. The ACMM cannot be 
stonewalled.  

 Mr. Mackaness stated that he has physically gone to Salem twice, spoken with the scheduler of the Governor’s 
office as Chair of the ACMM, and still has not received a response. He asked if there were any other actions they 
can take to facilitate a meeting. 

 
 

 

 

http://healthoregon.org/acmm


Quarterly ACMM Meeting Minutes 

The Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana is a statutorily mandated body (ORS 475.303) that provides the Oregon Health Authority with 
advice on the administrative aspects of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program. 

Web Address: healthoregon.org/acmm 

 

24 

 

Time  Agenda Topic Person Responsible 

1:00-2:00 Legislative Proposal Review and Follow Up ACMM Members 

Summary of Discussion Continued: 

 Members of the ACMM agreed that they would contact the offices of the Governor and the Attorney General. 

 Todd Dalotto stated that there are public hearings coming up each with public comment opportunities. Mr. 
Dalotto proposed that members of the ACMM should make sure to sign up to speak at those hearings to push for 
the listed priorities.   

 Anthony Taylor stated that if the ACMM is willing to speak during the hearings then they should coordinate 
testimony and practice before hand for best impact.  

 Cheryl Smith will send out event alerts to the ACMM regarding future hearings. 

 Sandee Burbank would like to organize rallies, displays, and focus on attendees to make appointments with 
legislature. She has organized four women to assist her in this endeavor and would appreciate any other help she 
can get. The group needs to determine what they will be called. The group will have costs for hotel rooms, shirts, 
display, food & drinks.  

 Mr. Dalotto stated that if anyone would like to participate in that effort please speak with Ms. Burbank after the 
meeting. A signup sheet was provided for the public. 

 Ms. Burbank asked the OMMP that if she was a patient with six plants, would her spouse be able to grow four 
recreational plants in the same garden. 

 Brian Michaels responded that the recreational plants and the medicinal plants must be physically segregated.  

 Mr. Taylor stated that there is currently talk that the medically allowed six plants would be inclusive of the 4 
recreationally allowed plants per patient.   

 

 

 

Part 3: Public announcements and comments 

Time Agenda Topic Person Responsible 

2:00-2:30 Public Announcements and Comments Members of the Public 

 
 

http://healthoregon.org/acmm

